
Please note:  The Pride Flag Raising will be held on July 27, 2021 at 12:00 p.m. 

Municipal Council Meeting REVISED Agenda Tuesday, July 27, 
2021 – 9:00 a.m. 
Via Video/Audio Teleconferencing 

1. Call to Order

1.1 Mi’kma’ki Territorial Acknowledgement

2. ANNOUNCEMENTS, ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS, RECOGNITION

2.1 Proclamation – Emancipation Day ...................................................................................... 1 

3. Approval of Agenda (as circulated)

4. Approval of Minutes – Special Council of July 6, 2021 & Council of July 13, 2021

5. Business Arising from Minutes

6. Awarding of Tenders/RFPs

6.1 Award of Member Family Assistance Program for Fire Service Members ...................... 2-3 

7. Presentations/Scheduled Times

7.1 SWEB Development LP – Renewable Energy
Jason Parise, Dev. Manager ....................................................... 9:15 a.m. (to be circulated) 

8. Consideration of Correspondence (Nil)

9. Recommendations from Committees & Boards
9.1 Policy & Strategy Committee
9.1.1 Repeal & Replace By-law 022 Regional Emergency Measures with By-law 046 

Regional Emergency Management (2021) ............................................................... (4) 5-30 
9.1.2 Proposed Amendments to MODL Policy 058 Fees re Electric Vehicle Charger ..... (4) 31-45 
9.1.3 First Reading - Proposed By-law 008A By-law Respecting the Repeal of 

By-law 008 Fire Department Tax Exemption .......................................................... (4) 46-53 
9.1.4 Proposed Policy MODL 093 Temporary Water Relief Program .............................. (4) 54-62 

10. Staff Reports
10.1 Administration Department 
10.1.1 Fire Department Area Rates 2021-2022 ...................................................................... 63-64 
10.1.2 ACOA Grant re Wayfinding .......................................................................................... 65-67 
10.1.3 Emergency Assistance Fund for Community Facilities ................................................ 68-71 

11. Mayor’s/Deputy Mayor’s/Councillors’ Matters
11.1 LCLC Update 
11.2 Deputy Mayor’s Update 
11.3 Mayor’s Update 

Tina.Bond
Highlight



Municipal Council Agenda 
July 27, 2021 
Page 2 of 2 

12. Added Items

13. In Camera
13.1 Personnel Matter re Active Smarter Kids Program under Section 22(2)(c) of the MGA 
13.2 Contract Negotiations re Indian Falls Easement under Section 22(2)(e) of the MGA 
13.3 Contract Negotiations re Billie Lane under Section 22(2)(e) of the MGA 

14. Adjournment



Proclamation – Emancipation Day 
Whereas, August 1st is Emancipation Day commemorating the anniversary date of 1834 when 
the British parliament abolished slavery across its empire, freeing about 800,000 enslaved 
people of African descent throughout the British colonies;  

Whereas, we must acknowledge that slavery was part of our province and country’s horrific 
past and this history must be shared in our efforts to work together to address anti-Black 
racism and all forms of racism so all Nova Scotians can prosper, reach their full potential, and 
live as equal citizens; 

Therefore, on behalf of the Municipality of the District of Lunenburg, I do hereby proclaim 
August 1 to be “Emancipation Day.” 

Dated July 27, 2021 

_________________________________ 

Carolyn Bolivar-Getson, Mayor 

#2.1
July 27, 2021

Agenda Page 1 of 71

Tina.Bond
Agenda Stamp



#6.1
July 27, 2021

Agenda Page 2 of 71

Tina.Bond
Agenda Stamp



Agenda Page 3 of 71



Municipality of the District of Lunenburg 
10 Allée Champlain Drive, Cookville, Nova Scotia, Canada, B4V 9E4 
Phone: 902.543.8181    Fax: 902.543.7123    Web Site: www.modl.ca 

July 20, 2021 

To Her Worship, Mayor Bolivar-Getson, and Councillors 
of the Municipality of the District of Lunenburg 

Dear Mayor and Councillors: 

The Policy & Strategy Committee, in session on Tuesday, July 20, 2021, made the following 
recommendations to Council: 

1. That Municipal Council give Notice of Intention to repeal the existing By-law 022 Regional
Emergency Measures that was approved by Council on March 8, 2005, the Minister
responsible for the Emergency Measures Act on December 18, 2006, and the Minister of
Service NS and Municipal Relations on March 5, 2007 and replace it with the new MODL
By-law 046 Regional Emergency Management (2021) and conduct First Reading of same;
and hereby gives notice of Second Reading to consider repealing By-law 022 and approving
and adopting By-law 046.

2. That Municipal Council amend the Fees Policy, as presented in Appendix A of the Staff
Report dated July 20, 2021, and hereby gives seven (7) days’ notice of Council’s intention
to consider amending the Policy at the July 27, 2021, Council meeting; and further that the
fee for the Electric Vehicle Charging Station be reviewed in one year.

3. That Municipal Council gives Notice of its Intention to adopt By-law 008A By-law
Respecting the Repeal of By-law 008 Fire Department Tax Exemption and conduct First
Reading of same and gives notice of Second Reading to consider the adoption of By-law
008A.

4. That Municipal Council adopt MODL Policy 093 Temporary Water Relief Program, and
hereby gives seven (7) days’ notice that Council will consider the proposed Policy at the
July 27, 2021, Council meeting.

Respectfully submitted, 

Chairman and Members 
Policy & Strategy Committee 

/jp 

#9.1
July 27, 2021

Agenda Page 4 of 71

http://www.modl.ca/
Tina.Bond
Agenda Stamp



t

'.:

-/

<vc. -aft

Municipality of the District of Lunenburg

Request for Decision

REPORT TO:

SUBMITTED BY:

DATE:

RE:

Policy & Strategy Committee

Sherry Conrad, Municipal Clerk

July 20, 2021

Repeal of By-law 022 Regional Emergency Measures (2005) and

Replace with By-law 046 Regional Emergency Management (2021)

RECOMMENDATION

"that the Policy & Strategy Committee recommends to Council that Municipal Council give
Notice of its Intention to repeal the existing By-law 022 Regional Emergency Measures that
was approved by Council on March 8, 2005, the Minister Responsible for the Emergency
Measures Act on December 18, 2006, and the Minister of Service NS and Municipal Relations
on March 5, 2007 and replace it with the new MODL By-law 046 Regional Emergency
Management (2021) and conduct First Reading of same; and further, that it gives notice of
Second Reading to consider repealing By-law 022 and approving and adopting By-law 046".

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

The Municipality of the District of Lunenburg's current Regional Emergency Measures By-law
022 was approved by Council on March 8, 2005, the Minister Responsible for the Emergency
Measures Act on December 18, 2006, and the Minister of Service Nova Scotia and Municipal
Relations on March 5, 2007. This By-law is outdated and does not meet the terms of the 2017
Inter-Municipal Services Agreement (IMSA) which requires all five units to have similar by-laws.
The repeal of the current by-law and the replacement of it with the new By-law 046 will meet
these requirements.

DISCUSSION

Municipal Council repealed its Emergency Measures By-law approved by the Minister of
Emergency Measures (NS) on February 22,1994, and the Minister of Municipal Affairs on
February 25,1994, and approved the current By-law 022 on March 8, 2005.

#9.1.1
July 27, 2021

Agenda Page 5 of 71

Tina.Bond
Agenda Stamp



The Municipality of the District of Chester and the Towns of Bridgewater and Mahone Bay
updated their by-laws in 2014/15, therefore, their by-laws just required amendments to meet
the requirements of the 2017 Inter-Municipal Agreement. MODL did not update its By-law at
that time and, therefore, it is out of date and should be repealed and replaced instead of
amended.

The proposed new By-law 046 is similar to those by-laws of the Municipality of the District of
Chester and the Towns of Bridgewater and Mahone Bay and to the proposed by-law which will
be coming before the Council of the Town of Lunenburg. With the repeal of the existing By-law
022 and the adoption of the new By-law 046, the requirements of the Inter-Municipal Services
Agreement will be met.

BUDGET IMPLICATIONS

None

STRATEGIC PLAN
N/A

WORK PLAN

No additional staff resources. Done within staff current work plan.

ALTERNATIVES

Make changes to the proposed new By-law 046.

CONCLUSION

The repeal of By-law 022 Regional Emergency Measures By-law is required and needs to be
replaced with a new by-law that is similar to the other 4 municipal units in the REMO Inter-
Municipal Services Agreement. The draft By-law 046 meets these requirements, therefore,
staff is recommending the repeal of the existing By-law 022 and replacing it with the new By-
law 046.

Department:

Report Prepared By: Sherry Conrad

Report Approved By: Alex Dumaresq, Deputy CAO

Reviewed By CAO:

Date: July 7, 2021

Date: July 7, 2021

Date:

Agenda Page 6 of 71



Municipality of the District of Lunenburg
By-Law

Title: Regional Emergency Management By-law

By-LawNo. 046 Legislative Authority:

Effective Date: Amended Date:

1.0 Short Title

1.1 This By-law may be cited as the "Regional Emergency Management By-law" to render
mutual aid and joint provisions of services and facilities to provide for a prompt,
effective and coordinated response to an emergency within the territories of the
participating municipalities of the Municipality of the District of Lunenburg; the
Municipality of the District of Chester; the Town of Bridgewater; the Town of Mahone
Bay, and the Town of Lunenburg.

2.0 Definitions

2.1 In this By-law:

a) Act means the Emergency Management Act, S.N.S., 1990, as amended from time to
time;

b) State of Emergency Regulations means regulations approved by the Governor in
Council by Order in Council 92-61, Regulation 17/92, as amended from time to time;

c) Agreement means the Inter-Municipal Emergency Services Agreement, dated
January 18, 2017, among the participating Municipalities and as amended from time
to time;

d) Minister means the Minister responsible for Emergency Management of the
Province of Nova Scotia;

e) Deputy Minister means the Deputy Minister responsible for Emergency
Management of the Province Nova Scotia;

f) Councils means the Councils of the participating Municipalities (Municipality of the
District of Lunenburg, the Municipality of the District of Chester, the Town of
Bridgewater, the Town of Mahone Bay, and the Town of Lunenburg);

g) Region means all territories within the participating Municipalities;

Agenda Page 7 of 71



Regional Emergency Management By-law «Date of By-law»

h) State of Local Emergency means a state of a local emergency declared, renewed, or
terminated by the Council, Mayor, or Warden of a participating Municipality;

i) Regional Emergency Operations Centre (REOC) means the Regional Emergency
Management Organization (REMO) operation centre as established, equipped, and
serviced per the Agreement.

3.0 Responsibilities for Emergency Management

3.1 The Councils, in accordance with the Agreement:

a) shall appoint and maintain a Regional Emergency Management Organization (REMO)
responsible for the planning and the coordination of emergency services delivery
and consist of:

a Regional Emergency Management Advisory Committee (REMAC);
ii. a Regional Emergency Management Planning Committee (REMPC);
iii. a Regional Emergency Management Coordinator (REMC); and
iv. for each participating Municipality, an Assistant Emergency Coordinator (AEC);

b) declare, renew, or terminate a State of Local Emergency, as outlined in the State of
Emergency Regulations as may be required and if unavailable in a timely manner,
permit the Mayor or Warden of the affected participating Municipatity(s) to make
such declarations;

c) shall cause the Emergency Management Plan or any part thereof to be implemented
and may do everything necessary for the protection of property and the health and
safety of persons pursuant to Section 14 of the Act;

d) may appropriate and expend monies to pay reasonable expenses of members of
REMO and to fulfill the terms and conditions of any agreement approved by the
Councils;

3.2 REMAC, in accordance with the Agreement:

a) is responsible during a State of Local Emergency for the executive direction and
management of emergency plans and activities within the Region and for advice to
Councils pursuant to the Act;

b) recommends to Councils, Mayor or Warden, the declaration, renewal, or
termination of a State of Local Emergency as outlined in the State of Emergency
Regulations;

c) shall deliver a copy of the signed Declaration, Renewal, or Termination of a State of
Local Emergency to the Nova Scotia Emergency Management Office (NS EMO) and

Agenda Page 8 of 71



Regional Emergency Management By-law «Date of By-law» 

the Minister and ensure that such Declarations are communicated effectively to the 

people of the area(s) affected; 

d) with the approval of Councils, may enter into agreements with the Government of 

Canada, the Province of Nova Scotia, a municipality, city or town, or any other

agency or any person;

3.3 REMC, as appointed by the REMAC, in accordance with the Agreement: 

a) shall chair the REM PC and coordinate, prepare, and maintain emergency plans;

b) shall, pursuant to Section 10A of the Act, inform the Nova Scotia Emergency

Management Office of any real or anticipated event or emergency and upon

activation of an REOC or the Declaration of State or Local Emergency, prescribe, as

necessary, duties to be fulfilled by employees, servants, and agents of the

municipality and coordinate the REOC activities with NS EMO;

3.4 REM PC in accordance with the Agreement: 

a) shall include, but not be limited to, persons responsible during an emergency to

provide health, law enforcement, fire, utilities, communications, transportation,

public works, financial, legal, or other essential community services;

b) shall provide recommendations to REMC for the purpose of the development of

regional emergency management plans, policy and procedures for the Region, and

provide briefings as requested by Council.

4.0 

4.1 

5.0 

5.1 

Responsibilities of Others in a State of Local Emergency 

Following the Declaration of a State of Local Emergency and for the duration of such, 

every Councillor, employee, and agent of the participating Municipality who has a key 

role in the execution of the emergency management plans, shall fulfill such duties as 

may be required according to the emergency plans. 

Repeal 

MODL By-law 022 Regional Emergency Measures of the Municipality of the District of 

Lunenburg adopted by Municipal Council on March 8, 2005 is hereby repealed and 

replaced with this new MODL By-law 046 Regional Emergency Management (2021). 

Agenda Page 9 of 71



Regional Emergency Management By-law «Date of By-law»

Annotation for Official By-law Book

Date of First Reading

Date of Advertisement of Notice of Intent to Consider

Date of Second Reading

*Date of advertisement of Passage of By-law

Date of mailing to Minister a Certified copy of By-law

«date»

«date»

«date»

«date»

«date»

I certify that this MODL By-law 046 Regional Emergency Management was adopted by Council and
published as indicated above.

Sherry Conrad, Municipal Clerk Date

* Effective Date of the By-law unless otherwise specified in the text of this By-law.

Agenda Page 10 of 71



Approved by Municipality of Lunenburg Council
March 8, 2005

(Same for each participating Municipal Unit)

REGIONAL EMERGENCY MEASURES BYLAW

A Bylaw to Provide for a Prompt and Coordinated Response to a State of Local Emergency.

The Council of the Municipality of the District ofLunenburg, under tiie authority vested in it by the
Municipal Government Act, R.S.N.S. 1999, an& ihe Emergency Measures Act,R.SN.'S. 1990, C.8,
s. 10, enacts as follows:

SHORT TITLE

1. This Bylaw may be cited as the "Regional Emergency Measures Bylaw".

INTERPRETATION

2. In this Bylaw,

a. "Act" means the Emergency Measures Act, R.S.N.S. 1990, c.8;

b. "Agreement" means the Inter-Municipal Emergency Services Agreement among the •>
Town ofBridgewater, Town ofMahone Bay, Municipality of the Distnct of Chester, and
the Municipality of the District ofLunenburg pursuant to Section 10 (2) of the Act,
approved in accordance with this Bylaw and effective upon the approval of all Municipal
Member Units approval by appropriate motion by each Council, and as amended from
time to time;

c. Council" means the Council of the Municipality of the District of Lunenburg;

d. "Councils" meai-is the Councils of the Town of Bridgewater, Town ofMahone Bay,
Municipality of the District of Chester, and the Municipality of the District ofLunenburg;

e. Councillor" means a member of tlie Council;

f. "Director" means the Director of the Nova Scotia Emergency Measures Organization;

g. Emergency" means a present or imniinent event which requires the prompt coordination
of action or regulation of persons or property to be undertaken to protect propert>' or the
health, safety or welfare of people;

h. "Minister" means the member oftlie Executive'Council of the Province of Nova Scotia
to whom is assigned the administration of the Act and Regulations;

Agenda Page 11 of 71



Regional Emergency Measures Bylaw Page 2

i. Emergency M^easures Plan" meaiis plans, programs or procedures prepared by the
Regional Emergency Measures Organization (REMO) that are intended to mitigate the
effects of an emergency or disaster and to provide for the safety, health, or welfare of the
civil population and the protection of property in the event of such an occurrence;

j. "Regional Unified Coniniand Group" (RUCG) means the group established by the
Agreement to plan for and be responsible for the executive direction and management of
emergency activities;

k. "Regional Emergency Measures Coordinator"(REMC) means the person appointed to
serve as the staff person in accordance with the Agreement;

I. "Regional Emergency Measures Organization" (REMO) means the Organization
established as per the Agreement;

m. "Regional Emergency Measures Planning Committee" (REMPC) means the Committee
responsible to develop and recoranieiid policy and emergency plans to the Regional
Unified Conunand Group;

a. "State of Emergency Regulations" means regulations approved by the Governor in
Council by Order in Council 92-61, Regulation 1 7/92, as amended from time to time;

o. "State of Local Emergency" means a State of Local Emergency declared by the Council
of a participating Municipality pursuant to the Act or by a Mayor or Warden in the event
Council cannot be assembled in a timely manner or renewed pursuant to the Act and
Regulations made pursuant thereto and this Bylaw.

REGIONAL EMERGENCY MEASURES ORGANIZATION

3. The Council hereby agrees to the establishment of a Regional Emergency Measures
Organization in accordance witli the Agreement.

4. The Regional Emergency Measures Organization shall consist of the following persons and
Committees:

a. a Regional Unified Commaiid Group;

b. a Regional Emergency Measures Coordinator; and

c. a Regional Emergency Measures Planning Corpmittee

Agenda Page 12 of 71



Regional Emergency Measures Bylaw _Page3

REGIONAL UNIFIED COMMAND GROUP

5. The Council of each member Unit shall appoint two members, one of whom shall be the
senior elected Municipal official, to the Regional Unified Command Group in accordance
with the Agreement, for such term as the Agreement provides.

6. The Regional Unified Comniand Group shall

a. be responsible for directing and overseeing the development of the regional emergency
measures plan;

b. brief Council(s) on the development of these plans;

c. recommend tlie Declaration of a State of Local Emergency to the Council(s) of
participating municipalities as required, or in the event such Council(s) cannot be
assembled in a timely manner, the senior elected official of the affected Municipality(s).-
may declare such a state in accordance witli the Act.

d. be responsible for the Executive direction and management of emergency activities
during a State of Local Emergency;

e. with the approval of the Minister, recomniend the renewal of a State of Local
Emergency; :-

f. brief Council(s) on developments during a State of Local Emergency;

g. reconimead the termination of a State of Local Emergency;

h. ensure a copy of any signed Declaration of a State of Local Emergency is delivered to
EMO NS who in turn will deliver to the Director and the Minister;

i. Following the signature of a Declaration of a State of Local Emergency shall iirunediately
cause the declaration or termination to be communicated or published by such means as
the Council considers the most likely to make the contents of the declaration or
tennination known to the people of the area affected.

Agenda Page 13 of 71



Regional Emergency Measures Bylaw Page 4

REGIONAL EMERGENCY MEASURES COORDINATOR

8. The Regional Emergency Measures Coordinator shall be appointed in accordance with the
Agreenient.

9. The Regional Emergency Measiires Coordinator shall be paid for work incurred under tlus
Bylaw in accordance with tl-ie Agreement.

10. The Regional Emergency Measures Coordinator shall:

a. Chair the Regional Emergency Measures Planning Committee;

b. coordinate and prepare the regional emergency measures plan;

c. perfbnn such duties as may be required by the Regional Unified Command Group or as
provided for in the Agreement. I.-

REGIONAL EMERGENCY MEASURES PLANNING COMMITTEE

11. Each party shall appoint appropriate local Mmiicipal emergency measures coordinating
representatives to the Regional Emergency Measures Planning Committee as the Agreement
provides.

12. The provision of appropriate representatives and their alternates to the Regional Emergency
Measures Planning Committee will be coordinated by the Regional Emergency Measures
Coordinator. The Regional Emergency Measures Planning Committee shall include, but not
be limited to, persons responsible during an emergency to provide:

a. community services;

b. law enforcement;

c. fire control;

d. engineering services;

e. pre-hospital emergency/health services;

f. public infomiation;

g. transportation;

h. conununications;

!

Agenda Page 14 of 71



Regional Emergency Measures Bylaw _Page 5

i. hospital services;

j. utilities;

k. financial services aiid administration;

1. legal services.

13. The Regional Emergency Measures Plaiming Conimittee shall:

a. assist the Regional Emergency Measures Coordinator in the coordination and preparation
of the regional emergency measures plan;

b. advise the Regional Unified Command Group as required on the development of the
regional emergency measures plan, and

c. assume Incident Command System (ICS) duties within any Regional Emergency
Operations Centre (EOC) that might be established in response to an emergency
requirement in the region in accordance with the Regional Emergency Measures Plan.

AGREEMENTS

14. The Council agrees that the Regional Unified Conimand Group may enter into Agreements
with the Government of Canada, the Province of Nova Scotia, a Municipality, city or town,
any other agency, or any person during an emergency only. Any long-term Agreements must
be approved by a simple majority of the member Units as parties to the Agreement.

DUTY OF COUNCIL

15. a. The Council may appropriate and expend moiiies to pay reasonable expenses of members
of the Regional Unified Command Group, the Regional Emergency Measures
Coordinator and the Regional Emergency Measures Planning Committee; and to fulfill
the terms and conditions of any Agreements as per Section 14.

b. As per Section 10(1) (e) of the Emergency Measures Act, Council must approve the
Regional Emergency Measures Plan;

Agenda Page 15 of 71



Regional Emergenc}' Measures Bylaw Page 6

DUTIES DURING A STATE OF LOCAL EMERGENCY

16. Following the issuance of a declaration under Section 6, and for the duration of the State of
Local Emergency;

a. every Councillor shall keep tlie Warden/Mayor posted respecting their whereabouts;

b. every employee, servant, and agent of the Municipality who has a key role to play in such
emergencies as identified in the Regional Emergency Measures Plan shall:

i. advise the Regional Eniergency Measures Coordinator of their whereabouts; and

ii. fulfill such duties as may be prescribed

MINUTES OF MEETING

17. Minutes of all meetings of the Regional Uniform Command Group and the Regional
Emergency Measures Planning Conunittee shall be taken and a copy forwarded to each
Municipality within fourteen days oftlie meeting.

REPEAL
•,
:•

18. The Emergency Measures Bylaw of the Municipality of the District of Lunenburg approved
by the Minister of Emergency Measures (NS) on February 22, 1994, and the Minister of
Municipal Affairs on February 25, 1994 is hereby repealed. This repeal comes into effect
upon all participating parties signing the Inter-Municipal Emergency Services Agreement.

I, D. E. Quinn, Chief Administrative Officer
of the Municipality of the District of
Lunenburg, do hereby certify that the
foregoing is a true copy of the Regional
Emergency Measures Bylaw for the
Municipality of the District ofLunenburg
which was duly approved at a duly called
meeting of the Municipal Council of the
Municipality of the District ofLunenburg duly
held on the 8th day March, A.D., 2005.

DATED at Bridgewater, N. S. this 16th day
of May, A.D-, 2006.

..^k^&^...£.-..c)/w^^.
DOU^AS E. Q ', C. A. 0.

Agenda Page 16 of 71



REMO
B® Rea<ty

Emergency Management Bylaw
June 4,2021

BRIEFING NOTE TO MODL COUNCIL
FOR INFORMATION AND APPROVAL

TOPIC / PURPOSE
The Emergency Management Bylaw does not reflect the 2017 Inter-Municipal Services
Agreement (IMSA) and there is no consistency between the five municipal units' bylaws.

BACKGROUND

The Nova Scotia Emergency Management Act states the responsibility for the health and
welfare of the public rests with the elected officials of a municipal government. Every
municipality must be prepared within its own capabilities to meet any threat that may arise
from emergencies or disasters.
The Regional Emergency Management Organization (REMO) was created to share
emergency management resources. An Inter-Municipa! Services Agreement (IMSA) was
created and amended as municipal units joined:

o MODL and Town of Bridgewater (BW) January 10,1994
o Town of Mahone Bay (TOMB) and Municipality of Chester (MOC) joined August 5, 2005
o Town of Lunenburg (TOL) joined January 18, 2017

Following updates in the IMSA, Item 22 agrees the municipal units will pass complementary
bylaws . The current Emergency Management Bylaws were last updated:

o TOMB Bylaw 10 | January 13, 2015
o BW Chapter 13 | August 11, 2014
o MOC | Bylaw 146 | April 13, 2014

Suggest amendments to Bylaw/Chapter

o MODL | Bylaw 22 | March 8, 2005
o TOL Bylaw 30 | June 24, 1993

Suggest repeal and replace with new
Bylaw

KEY CONSIDERATIONS

MODL has an outdated bylaw that does not reflect the latest IMSA therefore the suggestion
is to repeal and replace the existing bylaws. Item 22 states the parties must pass
complementary bylaws.

RECOMMENDATION

It is recommended that Council repeal and replace the Emergency Management Bylaw.

ATTACHMENT(S): Inter Municipal Services Agreement dated January 18,2017
Approval Letter from the Province dated April 12, 2021

CONTACT: Angela Henhoeffer, Regional Emergency Management Coordinator
(902) 930-1085 orAngela.Henhoeffer@modl.ca

1

Agenda Page 17 of 71



AN INTER-MUNICIPAL EMERGENCY SERVICES AGREEMENT

THIS AGREEMENT is made in seven copies this j ^day of January 2017.

AMONG:

The MUNICIPALITY OF THE District ofLunenburg, a municipal body corporate
pursuant to the Municipal Government Act;

-and-

The MUNICCPALITy OF THE District of Chester, a municipal body corporate
pursuant to the Municipal Government Act;

- and -

The TOWN OF Bridgewater, a municipal body corporate pursuant to the Municipal
Government Act;

-and-

The TOWN OF Mahone Bay, a municipal body corporate pursuant to the Municipal
Government Act;

-and-

The TOWN OF Lunenburg, a municipal body corporate pursuant to the Municipal
Government Act.

WHEREAS 4 of the 5 the parties hereto previously entered into an inter-municipal emergency
services agreement, effective on August 1,2005;

AND WHEREAS 4 of the 5 pai-ties previously entered into a new inter-mimicipal emergency
services agreement effective on April 1,2011;

AND WHEREAS all parties now wish to enter a new inter-municipal emergency services
agreement to be effective March 21,2016.

NOW THEREFORE witness in consider of the mutual promises and covenants contained herein
the parties hereto agree as follows:

General

1. The Purpose of this inter-municipal services agreement, hereafter called (Agreement) is
-1-

Agenda Page 18 of 71



2.

to provide for a coordinated response to an emergency occiuring within Lunenburg
County, including the Municipality of the District ofLunenburg, the Municipality of the
District of Chester, the Town ofBridgewater, the Town ofMahone Bay, and the Town of
Lunenburg referred to in this Agreement as the (region).

This Agreement also provides for the parties to render mufaial aid with respect to
personnel and equipment during an emergency.

3. This Agreement is to provide for the j oint provision of services and facilities by the
municipal units in the region pursuant to Part IH - 60 (1) of the Municipal Government
Act and section 10 (2) (c) of the Emergency Management Act.

4. The planning for and coordination of emergency service delivery during a real or imminent
emergency as defined by the Emergency Management Act, shall be provided by the
Regional Emergency Measures Organization, referred to in this Agreement as the
(REMO).

Host Municipality

5. The Municipality of the District of Lunenburg is hereafter called the Host Municipality,
and as such, will provide a communications room and the Regional Emergency
Operations Centers (REOC). The District of Chester shall also provide an EOC site for the
REMO.

6. The Host Municipality will be responsible for all administrative functions mcluding
financial, record keeping, minute taking and reporting on behalf of REMO during non-
emergency siftiations.

7. The Host Municipality will include the Regional Emergency Management Coordinator,
assets and activities on their Municipality's liability insurance policy.

St-uctire

8. The REIMO shall consist of a Regional Emergency Management Advisory Committee, a
Regional Emergency Management Planning Committee and the Regional Emergency
Management Coordinator and Assistant Emergency Management Coordinators from
each unit.

I

I

;

Regional Advisory Cominittee

9. The Regional Emergency Management Advisory Committee shall be responsible for the
direction and management of emergency preparedness activities within the region and to
advise the appointing Councils pursuant to section 10 (1) (d) of the Emergency
Managements Act.

a. Each pai-ty to this agreement shall appoint to the Regional Emergency
Management Advisory Committee two (2) members of its Council, one of

-2-

:

Agenda Page 19 of 71



j

;

whom shall be the Mayor or Warden. Each party shall further appoint an
alternate to act in the place of a member if absent.

b. Members of the Regional Emergency Management Advisory Committee
are appointed for the same tenn of office as the Council that appomts them
and hold office until their successors are named, (subject to a.above)

c. In the event of a vacancy occurring, the Council that appointed the member
shall appoint a replacement within six weeks after the vacancy occurs.

d. The Regional Emergency Management Advisory Committee shall annually
name one of its members to be chair and one to be vice-chair, to act in the
absence of incapacity of the chair.

e. The chair or other person presiding shall vote on every question before the
Regional Emergency Management Advisory Committee.

g. Quorum for the Regional Advisory Committee shall be 50% plus one.

h. The Chief Adnunista'ative Officers/Managers and the Assistant Emergency
Coordinators for each Municipal unit as well as the Regional Emergency
Management Coordinator shall be non-voting members of the Regional
Advisory Committee

Regional Plarmine Comnuttee

10. The Regional Emergency Management Planning Committee shall be responsible for
recommendmg policy and procedures to the Regional Emergency Management
Advisory Committee for maintainmg a reasonable state of preparedness for emergencies
and shall consist of representatives of emergency services and other agencies which may
have direct operational responsibilities in an emergency,

a. Each party to this agreement shall appoint the respective Assistant Emergency
Management Coordmator, staff members, and where it is appropriate volunteer
agency representatives, to the Regional Emergency Management Planning
Coinmittee.

b. The Regional Emergency Management Coordinator (REMC) shall chair the Regional
Emergency Management Planning Committee.

Regional Emergency Management Coordinator

11. All parties agree that the Regional Emergency Management Coordinator shall be an
employee of the Municipality of the District ofLunenburg and shall serve as the staff
member ofREMO. The Regional Emergency Management Coordinator (REMC) shall
be appointed by the Advisory Committee to act as the REMC.

a. Should the position of the Regional Emergency Management Coordinator become
-3-

Agenda Page 20 of 71



vacant, it will be the responsibility of the CAO of the Municipality of the District of
Lunenburg to fill the vacancy in accordance with the hiring policies of the
Municipality of the Disb-ict ofLunenburg. The selection coinmittee shall consist of
the CAO's of the participating municipalities.

Assistant Emergency Management Coordinators

12. The parties agree that each Municipality shall appoint a staff member as an Assistant
Emergency Management Coordinator to act as a liaison with the REMC.

Emergency Operations

13. The REMO shall be the organization directly responsible for the control and conduct of
emergency response operations according to the plans and procedures adopted by the
parties from time to time. When the capacity ofREMO is exceeded, or is likely to be
exceeded, REM:0 will activate support from other agencies in accordance with formal
or informal arrangements.

14. The REMO is aufhorized to operate, maintain and manage physical facilities for
emergency activities both at the scene of the emergency and at a centralized
coordination facility.

15. The host Municipality is empowered to acquire or contract for the use of equipment,
facilities and personnel necessary or advisable to carry out the responsibilities assigned
to REMO by this Agreement.

16. The host Municipality may contract with any person or organization, including a
mimicipal unit and a municipal unit which is party to this agreement, for the provision
of any service of facility necessary or advisable to carry out the responsibilities
assigned to the REMO by this Agreement.

17. Any capital asset created or acquired by the KEMO shall be owned j ointly by the parties
in the proportion they conti-ibuted at the time of purchase except for assets contributed
solely by a particular municipality and those assets shall remain the property of that
municipality.

18. The REMO shall establish its own Concept of Operations to guide the Regional
Emergency Operations Center.

19. The parties recognize that an emergency may require the sharing or redeployment of
persoimel and equipment in order to save lives or minimize damage to property or the
environment, and imdertake to provide personnel and equipment as deemed appropriate
by the Regional Emergency Management Advisory Coinmittee and recommended by
the Regional Emergency Management Planning Cominittee.

a. Any cost eligible for DFA funding and associated with the deployment of resources
of a responding mimicipality during a present of imminent emergency will be borne
by the requesting municipality.

-4-

i

Agenda Page 21 of 71



b. Other extraordinary costs incurred in the provision or assistance of a municipality shall
be borne by the requesting Municipality. Extraordinary costs are defmed as mcluding,
but not limited to, costs that are above and beyond the usual day to day expenses,
including payment of overtime, payment of travel expenses (meals, accommodations
and mileage), repairs to equipment damaged while rendering aid and any other items
which would be mutually agreed to by the parties to this Agreement.

20. The parties shall share the cost of operations of the REMO based on an annual budget
divided proportionally based upon current unifonn assessment.

a. The Advisory Coinmittee shall recommend to the parties of this Agreement an
Operating and Capital Budget by February 1 of the fiscal year prior to the fiscal
year of the recommended budget. The approval of the Operating and Capital
Budget will be subject to the approval of a minimum of two municipal units
containing at least 51% of the unifonn assessment.

b. Actual dollar contribution of the Municipalities shall be based on the annual budget
of the REMO.

c. The host municipality will iavoice {he other contributing Mumcipality(s) for fheir
portion of the actual costs that are additional to their annual contribution. Billing
after year end to be adjusted to reflect actuals.

d. In the event the REMO requires additional money for capital or operating purposes,
any such increase shall be approved by the parties in accordance with clause 20(a).

21. The fiscal year of the REMO shall be from April 1 to March 31 of the following year.

22. This Agreement is conditional on the parties passing a complementary by-law respecting
the coordinated response to an emergency pursuant to the Emergency Management Act.

I

f

E

Temiination of Agreement

23. This Agreement has effect commencing March 21,2016, and replaces the former
Agreement which was effected on April 1,2011.

24. This Agreement has effect from year to year until terminated by the agreement of all
parties.

25. This Agreement continues in force until notice oftennination is given by the Council of
any party to the Councils of the ofher parties not less than one (1) year prior to the
intended termmation date, which shall be the 31st day of March in a year to be specified
in the notice of termination.

26. Any party withdrawing from this Agreement remains responsible for its share of any
liabilities of the REMO incurred up to the date of the withdrawal and any severance,

-5-
I Agenda Page 22 of 71



penalty or other costs necessarily incurred by the REMO as a result of the withdrawal.

27. Upon dissolution of the REMO by unanimous consent of the parties, the assets of the
RE]\/[0 are vested in the parties and the pai-ties are responsible for the liabilities of the
REIvIO in proportion to the amounts contributed by the parties at that time. The Host
Municipality shall reimburse the other units based on an appraised value of the assets
multiplied by their percent contdbution at the time of purchase. This excludes the assets
of the alternative EOC which the Municipality of the District of Chester shall reicnburse
the other units based upon the appraisal of the assets multiplied by their percent
contiibution at the time of purchase.

Indemnification

28. Each party shall indemmfy its representatives from any liability that may arise as a result
of that member actmg as a member of the REMO.

Dispute Resolution

29. If any disagreement anses among the parties as to the proper interpretation of this
agreement Aat cannot be resolved, the parties shall submit the area of disagreement to
an arbitrator as provided by the Arbitration Act.

30. The parties acknowledge and agree that all headings are inserted for convenience only
and do not form part of the agreement.

31. This Agreement is governed by the laws of Nova Scotia.

;

;

'

i

-6-

Agenda Page 23 of 71



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have caused this Agreement to be executed by the hands of their
duly authorized officers and the affixing of their respective seals the day and year first above written (see 15).

DATED this 21st day of March, 2016 A.D.

SIGNED, SEALED AND DELIVERED

in the presence of:

Per:.
~)

^';rt,;.-<> ; - ^'iL'Li'-C'^d- ŷ
Witness

Per:.
iK?i

Witries;
2X

;s

Per:. ^ "Witness

i!!^
('

Per;'/7'
Witness

Uj^n^,s ' K^f^ ^^.n^

)
)
)
THE MUNICIPALITY OF THE District of
Lunenbi
)

Per: /1/^.
-Y or

) C-.
) 7<--^
)P&;

Municipal ClAl':)
)
)

THE MUNICIPALITY OF THE District of
Chester
)

^^
) Per:

/) War

)
)
) Per:

L/) CAO

)
) fl
THE TOWN OF Bridgewa^er

j~ r-)
) '^
) Per:
) Mayor
)
)
) Per:

rTTFff) CAO

)
)

THE TOWN OF Mahone Bay
) ./' .-;/

; p,, c^^^y^^
) ^^s^^Alayor ^
\(^^_-i0y^/-/
) y CAO y
)L
THE TOWN OF Lunenburg

L ."^.
) Per:.
) ^-—•—', Itfayor-Per:/^ i^ \.. _ „... ) —^T—,i^

Witness :—-" ) ^

J^l^^.ct,.,,. itu^3^
-7- /'.

;/'"^?
^../^..^^-

;̂

'«^<-

CAO lC^r^.

^^^l^'ZC^^^JAgenda Page 24 of 71



&^t

.M^AM.O) (A

"^
^̂

Municipal Affairs
Office of the Minister

t';)3,n;1" t;;i !,«.•;,:. A::!;!' -!jlis K-.l;;..l.l i-l-;).;.' .•":i.:...!;;4.E,:"-i l[&sW^^^^ IX.VilSC'.l.tf.^..-

April 12, 2021

Municipality of the District of Lunenburg
10 Allee Champlain Drive
Cookville, NS B4V 9E4

Pursuant to clause 9(b) of the Emergency Management Act, I hereby approve the amended Inter-Municipal
Emergency Services Agreement, dated 18th day of January 2017, adding the Town ofLunenburgtothe
regional organization structure of Lunenburg County.

Sincerely,

,< ^ "'•
Honourable Brendan Maguire
Minister of Municipal Affairs

c.c. Rhonda Matthews, NSEMO Emergency Management Planning Officer
Angela Henhoeffer, Lunenburg County REMO Coordinator
Nadine Smillie, Managing Lawyer and Senior Solicitor, DOJ

Agenda Page 25 of 71



I

(U£(D120
0
3

0
3

uc(U(30
c
u

E

5issC
J<

0̂
3

C
3Q

^
-1

r
s
l

0r
s
l

^
1
-

^
-1
a
»
c

Agenda Page 26 of 71



(Uc
o
0Q

.

Q
-

^
.

0
)

•
I-

'
cr
^

v
-1
0r
\j

<
u

u0
)

bcG
O

<
u

0T
3

s0
3

c
u

EL
U

c
u

>
-

ucc
u

+
-»
in0
0
c0u0cc
o

^
 £<

u

r
u

cQ
J

Ec
u

<
u

cc
u
E<

u
G

O
r
u

 ta
p

c
 
<

^
 L

OQ
J

uc
 a

5
&

 ^

c
o

1
1

C
D

Q
-

^
•^

^
 3

I-1
 E

C
D

(U(D0(
^

0
3

^
•N

^<
u

<
?

•Q
- s

u
 
<

u

=
 5

=
3

 •
'-
'

^J
2

s5•a.
,1sQ

<
i0

•-,

Agenda Page 27 of 71



~
0

,1

0tU
O

uc
o

C
D

>
<

u
L
O

^0
)

cpQ
.

w^(DL
O

c
u

•1
-»

r
o
tt4

<
>

0^+
<

»
c
:

C
D

s(D
^0c
=

C
3

&̂(D

?I0
3

•
 ^

i™

+
-»
QuL
Or
o

b

r
u

<
u

 ^
-0

-Q
 ro

^
^
 £

•
i?

^
^
 ^

 fu
a
; a

- T
3

?
^
%

5
^
 £

-c
 .9

--^
^
 'C

3
 +

-'

<
n

 2
 ru

f! E
^

£
 ^

S
^
 §

 E
3
 U

J
 P•»

-'
.•?

 ^
c
 
^

^
1
1

.'o
ti^

:1 III
ti^

l
^
iiS

§
•&

£

c
u

.^
ro

 ?
 .E

 'Dc
^
 ffl .4

±
 <

u
l
^
y

^
°
-a

 v
J
^
 ^

^
s
^
w

+
^
 U

 Q
.

s
s
fc

 is
^
 0

 Q
-^

:

0
0

c
u
ua

>
0
0

C
D

E<
u

 ^
-^

G
p
<

ro
 c

o

i
^^
i

G
O

 <
U

^
- C

D
c
u

 ^

1
^

£
S

?
D

.^
l
i

^
c
o

-0
 T

O
<

U
 0

-
.c

 '^

~
u

c
u
c0u0c
u

^1
-

C
T

t
c
n

^
 
u

t
^

(D

0• ^
n
^
^

L
Q

•<
-»

c3

c3c
u

r
u
 
c

Q
-—

:y
 ^

?
 tu

b
3

<
u
0

s
i

?
^
 ^

r
o

 r
u

3
 Q

.

1
:1

IIi^
 C

:
0

)
 r

o

ro
 '0

3

d
o

 0
~

°
 F

.
c
 ''''—

"
O

Q
 >

^

i 's
§
 ^,
Ill
I2

:
I1

0
'

Q
 c

^
 
I.0

s

s
;

ifti^

r
^

^
-1
0r
s
i

0
0

T
-1

£
-r
u
3cr
o

-
0C
D
c0Q

0
 
0

E
?

0
 Q

J

8
 I

in
 „_

?
 °

II0

Agenda Page 28 of 71



-Dc
:

0G
O

uC
D

G
Q

s
 s

y
 E

c
u
 c

u
^
^

r
u
c

(
/)

 fu
c
u

I
t

0
) C

U
&

0

L
D

Q
J

c
u

E
0

3
+

-
'

c
o

C
M

 <U
fN

 L
E<

u

c3uc
u

<
i=

^
 
i

i -ro
 ..

i^
"
g

"i-3
 ^" ro

c
 ru

 ~
5

—
 +

-
>

 C
L

s
 S

^
i I ?
-6

 c
u
 -^

§
-1

-^
M

E
 J

.E
 a

I
 
"
'

^
 ts

^
0

 r
u

 >
<

U
- Q

. C
D

0
 s^

)

L
H

T
-{
0rs

l

0
0

<
-1

^fU3cr
u

0^
-1

^r
o

>
<

C
Q

c
o
^Q

Dro
-
c
utr
u

>
<

C
D

Q+
-
•

c
o

4
-
'

c(U
E-
0c(U
E(1

3

?c
u

d
o

G
O

30
0

(Dc

§Q
J

ur
u

Q
-

?-
0cfUru
DQ

-
0
}

wCL>.
^
0

tu
O

 -1
^

=
5

 >
•

(7
) C

Q

^
t-

^
-1
0rs

l•
s

v
Hc
o
3tu

O
3<

^1
-

<
-1
0rs

l

mQ
.

<

L
H
00rs

i•
s

0
0

u^
—

r
u

mC
T»

c
n

^1
-

rs
l

c
u
c3

m<
L

)
+

-•
Q

.
r
u
^u

(D^1
-

T
-1

tr
u

>
>

c
o

rs
l

rs
j

^r
u

>
<

C
D

0m^r
o

>
<

C
D

C
Q

u0
Q0

Q

ill
sil

a
-

:s
It*x

S
O

Agenda Page 29 of 71



0C
D

-
0Q

)

EE0ua
»

C
d

<L
O1
0

(D4
-
'

C
D

<
u

u<
u

4
--

(U

0cc
o

c
u
0-0
T

3
cC

D

5r
o

>
<

J
2

T
5

c
u

+
-
'

C
D

-
p+
-
•

D0cr
u

0
0

r
u

Q0

>
<

ucc
u

MQ
J

EL
U

(Uc
u
u0

3
Q

-
c
u
i
-

-
0cC
D

0
3

c
u

Q
.

c
u

uc30u+
-
'

r
u

g
;;•,

lyK

-
0
s

^
^
.

~
0

 ^
c
 C

Q
C

L) •<
-»

8
 S

;,
c
u

u
. S

o
r
o

.^
 ru

Agenda Page 30 of 71



Municipality of the District of Lunenburg 
Memorandum 

To: Mayor Bolivar-Getson and Councillors  

From: Sherry Conrad, Clerk 

Date: July 20, 2021 

Re: Proposed Amendments to MODL Policy 058 “Fees” 

The Policy and Strategy Committee, in session on July 20, 2021, reviewed the proposed 
amendments to MODL Policy 058 Fees.  Most of the amendments were housekeeping in 
nature.  The main amendment was the addition of a fee charge column for the Electric Vehicle 
Charger Charging Station. 

The Committee made a motion to recommend the proposed amendments to Council for 
approval and gave notice to Council of its consideration for approval at its July 27, 2021 Council 
meeting. 

Section 48(1) of the Municipal Government Act states, “Before a policy is passed, amended or 
repealed, the Council shall give at least seven days’ notice to all council members.”  Therefore, 
in accordance with Section 48(1), the amended MODL Policy 058 “Fees” will be presented for 
Council’s approval at the July 27, 2021, Council session.  The Policy and Strategy Committee 
meeting of July 20, 2021, was hereby considered as Council’s notice. 

If Council approves of the proposed Policy amendment, the following motion would be 
necessary. 

“that Municipal Council approve the proposed amendments to MODL Policy 058 Fees 
as presented”. 

_________________________________________ 
Sherry Conrad 

Municipal Clerk 
/sac 

#9.1.2
July 27, 2021

Agenda Page 31 of 71

Tina.Bond
Agenda Stamp



Fees Policy 

Municipality of the District of Lunenburg 
POLICY 

Title: 
Fees 
Policy No. 058 Legislative Authority: 

Municipal Government Act, subsections 
132(2), 150(2), clauses 49(1)(c), 211(1)(b), 
and subclause 172(2)(e)(i) 

Private Roads By-law, Section 12 
Effective Date: 
11 January 2011; February 
amendments effective 01 April 2019 

Amended Date: 
May 10, 2011; February 12, 2019; 
February 25, 2020; July 27, 2021 

1.0 Title 
This Policy is titled the Fees Policy. [amended July 27, 2021] 

2.0 Administration 
This Policy must be referenced in related By-laws concerning the service 
identified. [amended July 27, 2021] 

3.0 Purpose 
The Municipality must provide clarity to citizens as to the various fees it charges, 
on the various government services. [amended July 27, 2021] 

4.0 Fees 

4.1 The fees for Planning and Development Services are as set out in Table 1. 
[amended July 27, 2021] 

Table 1: Planning and Development Services Fees [amended February 12, 2019 & July 
21, 2021] 

Services Fees 

Amendments to a Planning Strategy or a 
Land Use By-law 

$525.00 + advertising fee 

Development Agreement $525.00 + advertising fee 

Development Permit $26.00 

Fire Inspection $210.00 

Map Book $25.00 

Agenda Page 32 of 71



  Fees Policy 

 

Map Reproduction  $11.00 + $0.55 per square foot 

Planning Documents $11.00 

Private Road Maintenance & Improvement 
Administration Fee Rate 

5% of the total expenditures  
in the annual private road budget 

Property Record Certificate $58.00 

Subdivision, Final Plan 

(+each lot after 2 lots) 

$105.00 

+$26.00 

Variance $79.00 

Zoning Certificate $53.00 

 
 
4.2 The fees for Recreation Services are as set out in Table 2.  
 
Table 2: Recreation Services Fees [amended February 12, 2019 & July 27, 2021] 

Services Fees 

Ballfields $21.00 per hour + HST 

Ballfield League $19.00 per hour + HST 

MARC Rental  $11.00 per hour + HST 

MARC Residence  $5.00 per person, per night + HST 

 
 
4.3 The fees for Administration and Finance Services are as set out in Table 3.  
 
Table 3: Administration and Finance Services Fees [amended February 12, 2019 & July 
27, 2021] 
 
Services Fees 

Dog Tag – Replacement $1.00 

Fax $0.60 per page 

NSF Cheques $15.00 

Photocopies, Black & White  $0.15 per page 

Agenda Page 33 of 71



  Fees Policy 

 

Photocopies, Colour $0.30 per page 

Tax Certificate $42.00 

Tax Sale Administration Fee $160.00 

Verbal Tax Information $11.00 

 
 

4.4 The fees for Engineering Services are as set out in Table 4.  
 
Table 4: Engineering Services Fees [amended February 12, 2019] 

Services Fees 

Electric Vehicle Charging Station $0.00 per hour 

Sewer Permit $120.00 

 
 
5.0 Exempted Organizations 

Active non-profit organizations registered under the Societies Act are exempt 
from paying those fees identified under subsection 4.1 of this Policy, with the 
exception of the Private Road Maintenance & Improvement Administration Fee 
Rate. [amended May 10, 2011; Feb. 25, 2020; & July 27, 2021] 

Agenda Page 34 of 71



  Fees Policy 

 

 

Clerk’s Annotation for Official Policy Book 
 
Date of Adoption:      January 11, 2011 
 
Date of Notice to Council Members 
  of Intent to Consider Amendments:    April 11, 2011 
Effective Date of Amendments:    May 10, 2011 
 
Date of Notice to Council Members 
  of Intent to Consider Amendments:                                     February 5, 2019 
Date of Approval of Amendments:    February 12, 2019 
Effective Date of Amendments:    April 1, 2019   
  
Date of Notice to Council Members 
  of Intent to Consider Amendments:                                     February 18, 2020 
Date of Approval of Amendments:    February  25, 2020 
Effective Date of Amendments:    February 25, 2020  
 
Date of Notice to Council Members 
  of Intent to Consider Amendments:                                     July 20, 2021 
Date of Approval of Amendments:    July 27, 2021 
Effective Date of Amendments:    July 27, 2021 
 
I certify that this “Fees Policy 058” was adopted and amended by Council as indicated 
above. 
 
 
 
____________________________   _________________________ 
       Date 

Agenda Page 35 of 71



Municipality of the District of Lunenburg 
Request for Decision 

REPORT TO: Policy and Strategy Committee 
SUBMITTED BY: Byung Jun Kang, Planner 
DATE:  July 20, 2021 
RE: EV Charger Policy (Amendments to Policy 058, Fees Policy) 

RECOMMENDATION 
That the Policy and Strategy Committee recommend Municipal Council to amend the Fees 
Policy, as presented in Appendix A of the staff report dated July 20, 2021. 

DISCUSSION 
The estimated number of vehicles registered in the Municipality is 20,511, assuming 82 vehicles 
per 100 residents in Nova Scotia (Statistics Canada, 2019). At the moment, only 3.5% of new 
vehicles sold in Canada for 2020 were zero-emission vehicles (ZEV), and there are only 170 ZEVs 
registered in Nova Scotia. However, Nova Scotia Power predicts that the proportion of ZEVs in 
Nova Scotia will reach 10% by 2030 and 25% by 2040 (Halifax Regional Municipality, 2019). This 
exponential trend is induced by the federal and provincial subsidies for ZEVs, the continuing 
falls in battery prices, and the rise of gasoline prices in the near future. 

Demands for zero-emission vehicles (ZEV) 
If the Municipality were to follow the provincial trend, we may be home to more than 2,000 
ZEVs by 2030. However, the actual number of ZEVs might be lower if the Municipality has 
lacking infrastructure. Statistics Canada (2019) states that more than 95% of new ZEVs are sold 
in Ontario, Quebec, and British Columbia. 

Currently, Lunenburg County Lifestyle Centre (LCLC) and Best Western Plus in Cookville offer 
level 2 and 3 EV chargers, respectively. “There are around 6 regular users as well as others who 
use the chargers periodically” at LCLC, which may be estimated as 270 hours of usage per year 
(Kent Walsh, personal communications, 7 June 2021). 

Agenda Page 36 of 71

https://www.statcan.gc.ca/eng/topics-start/automotive
https://www.halifax.ca/sites/default/files/documents/city-hall/standing-committees/190905essc1211.pdf
https://www.statcan.gc.ca/eng/topics-start/automotive


Estimated cost of electricity 
As a general commercial customer, NS Power charges the Municipality a rate of $0.09266/kWh 
after the first 200kWh. Since our Level 2 charger requires 7.2kW for operation, the Municipality 
would pay $0.667152 for every hour that the charger is being used. Based on the testimonial 
from LCLC, the approximate cost of electricity used by the EV chargers at LCLC is: 

3 stations x 7.2kW x 1.5 hours x 60 days x $0.09266 = $180.13 (1,944 kWh of electricity). 

For comparison, the Municipality pays $84,000 a year for the electricity used at the Municipal 
Services Building. Adding a 270-hour EV charging activity increases the power bill by 0.2%. 

Estimated cost of maintenance 
Property managers can expect to pay around $300 per year for maintenance on level 1 and 2 
EV charging stations, so the cost to maintain your charger should be minimal (Metro 
Vancouver, 2019; PSI, 2019). For networked stations that includes advanced features like 
payment systems, more maintenance may be required. The maintenance cost increases with 
the number of charging hours, and in some cases, a higher rate of vandalism and irresponsible 
use of chargers will lead the maintenance cost overwhelming the cost of electricity. This is 
witnessed by the manager of LCLC (Kent Walsh, personal communications, 8 June 2021): 

“The charging adapters have required replacements and repairs, the cords to the adapters get 
frayed and have to be replaced, the hangers that hold the adapters have been broken and 
replaced, over time the units have loosened from their footing and required a metal adapter 
plate to be fabricated to secure them to the concrete. The bodies have been damaged and 
required replacements. You should have protective pillars installed because they would be 
much cheaper than the damage caused by cars and snow removal damage.” 

The reason why LCLC had $0 maintenance fee was because LCLC owns 3 spare charging stations 
on top of the 3 operational ones. The non-operational stations are used for parts to keep the 
maintenance costs free, but costs would rise if parts had been ordered. Fortunately, protective 
pillars are already installed for our municipal EV chargers, and the anticipated usage hours 
would stay relatively low for the next couple of years. Customer supports are also available by 
phone 24/7 for any software issues. Therefore, the expected cost of maintaining the municipal 
EV charger is likely to stay minimal. 

For the first year of operation, Leviton offers a maintenance and management program 
(ChargePoint Assure) to cover fixing hardware, technical supports, and labour warranty to 
further reduce the cost (ChargerPoint, 2019). After Year 1, US$560 (CA$700) are charged per 
station for the cloud service – making our charging stations appear online – and additional 
years of warranty up to 5 years may be purchased.  

Agenda Page 37 of 71

http://www.metrovancouver.org/services/air-quality/climate-action/transportation-programs/ev-strata-condo/key-info/cost-charging/Pages/default.aspx
http://www.metrovancouver.org/services/air-quality/climate-action/transportation-programs/ev-strata-condo/key-info/cost-charging/Pages/default.aspx
https://www.propertymanagerinsider.com/how-much-do-ev-charging-stations-cost/
https://www.chargepoint.com/files/datasheets/ds-assure.pdf


After-hour or off-peak rate reduction 
In some cases, owners of EV chargers reduce or eliminate charges after regular business hours, 
such as Dalhousie University and Saint Mary’s University. This scheme is common in places that 
charge parking fees during daytime, where they may expect more demand over supply, or in 
regions where a public utility offers reduced rate of electricity overnight. At the moment, 
neither are the case in the Municipality. 

Supporting the Council’s priority of reducing the GHG emission 
The conversion from a gas-powered vehicle to a ZEV is one of the most effective ways of 
reducing carbon emission. In Nova Scotia, every kilometre of driving an ZEV may reduce up to 
1.5 kg of CO2, and even more reduction once the source of electricity becomes more green 
(NRCan, 2018). Since gasoline and diesel contribute 29% of the total greenhouse gas (GHG) 
emission in the Municipality, a reduction in EV charger fee may encourage citizens to purchase 
ZEVs and thereby reducing a significant portion of our GHG emission. 

Federal and provincial regulations 
A senior advisor at Nova Scotia Utility and Review Board (Branko Zatezalo, personal 
communication, June 28, 2021) stated that, if a municipality purchases power from NS Power, 
the municipality is not considered a public utility and the fee charged by the municipality does 
not need to be approved by the Board. The above is based on the Board decision in Matter 
M08224 issued on January 4, 2018, in which the Board noted the following findings: 

[49] This project is not a regulated utility service as the assets are not integral to the 
production, transmission, delivery and furnishing of electrical energy. 

[50] The EV fast charging stations are similar to shore berths and any other equipment on a 
customers' premises and need not be owned by NSPI as ratepayer assets. 

However, non-free charging stations are subject to the Electricity and Gas Inspection Act 
(Canada), enforced by Measurement Canada. Like a gas pump, an EV charging station must pass 
a federal inspection before making the station available to the public, and periodically 
throughout the years to ensure a proper amount of electricity is sold to customers. 

Other municipalities – City of Vancouver 
In the EV Ecosystem Strategy, the City of Vancouver (2016) justifies an EV charger fee to 
“encourage use of home charging where available, but still provide a significant cost incentive 
compared with fossil fuels” (p. 43). Table 1 shows the suggested pricing based on electricity 
rates in British Columbia and Nova Scotia as well as fuel efficiency. Based on the principle, the 
suggested price range for the EV charger fee is between $0.67/hour and $4.15/hour in Nova 
Scotia. The rate may be lower if NS Power rolls out the Smart Grid Nova Scotia program – 
offering lower electricity costs by shifting demand to off-peak times (NS Power, 2021a). 

Agenda Page 38 of 71

https://www.cer-rec.gc.ca/en/data-analysis/energy-markets/market-snapshots/2018/market-snapshot-how-much-co2-do-electric-vehicles-hybrids-gasoline-vehicles-emit.html
https://vancouver.ca/files/cov/EV-Ecosystem-Strategy.pdf
https://www.nspower.ca/cleanandgreen/innovation/smart-grid-nova-scotia/chargepoint-home-flex-ev-charging-system


Table 1 
Comparison of fuel prices in Nova Scotia and British Columbia 

 British Columbia Nova Scotia Note 

Residential rate $0.09410/kWh 
$0.14100/kWh 

$0.12545/kWh 
$0.09266/kWh 

Step 1 rate 
Step 2 rate 

Medium general rate $0.09630/kWh $0.09266/kWh  

Gasoline $1.50/liter $1.30/litre (1 L = 8.9 kWh) 

ZEV fuel cost $0.0251/km $0.0165/km 2.0Le/100 km (Kona) 

Gas vehicle fuel cost $0.1185/km $0.1027/km 7.9Le/100 km (Kona) 

Suggested fee range $1.02-$4.79/hour $0.67-$4.15/hour  

Other municipalities – Lunenburg County and Halifax Regional Municipality 
Except for Best Western Plus in Cookville, all EV charging stations are free of charge in 
Lunenburg County, including private businesses and non-profit institutions. Table 2 has the full 
list of EV charging stations in Lunenburg County, while Table 3 contains some of the EV charging 
stations in Halifax Regional Municipality. 

Table 2 
EV charging stations in Lunenburg County 

Name Rate (Level 2) Note 

Best Western Plus $1.50/hour $15.00/hour for Level 3 

LCLC Free They would charge if possible 

Saint Marks Place Free Inoperative 

Riverport Community Centre Free  

Smuggler’s Cove Inn Free Hotel guest only 

Culligan Water Free Emergency only 

Bridgewater Volkswagen Free Customer only 

Gold Nugget AFN, Chester Free  

Agenda Page 39 of 71



Table 3 
Some EV charging stations in Halifax Regional Municipality 

Name Rate (Level 2) Note 

QEII Health Science Centre $1.67/hour + HST In addition to a parking fee 

Dalhousie University Free Regular parking fee applies 
Free after business hours 

Saint Mary’s University Free Regular parking fee applies 
Free after business hours 

Westin Nova Scotia $1.00/hour Parking fee exempted 

Nova Centre $3.00/hour Heavy volume of complaints 

Holiday Inn, Halifax Free  

Halifax International Airport Free $6/hour for parking 

IKEA Dartmouth Free  

Halifax Seaport Market Free $2/hour for parking 

RESULT 
Based on the points made in the discussion section, staff recommends offering the use of 
municipally-owned EV chargers free-of-charge to the public, and then revisit the policy 
direction in mid-2022 when the Municipality reviews Policy 058, the Fees Policy, for inflation 
adjustments. The result is based on the following factors: 

• assuming the existing demand, the cost to the Municipality is about $1,200/year; 
• more than an hourly charge of $4.15 will favour gas-powered vehicles; 
• all EV charging stations in Lunenburg County, except one, are free of charge; and 
• free EV charging policy has a significant impact in achieving a Council’s strategic priority. 

BUDGET IMPLICATIONS 
Assuming a similar level of demand of EV charging as LCLC, this policy amendment may cost the 
Municipality up to $1,200 a year in operating costs from Year 2 and onward, which includes 
electricity and maintenance. Once the tipping point of transition to ZEV occurs between 2023 
and 2025, the operating costs may increase. If the operating costs exceed $5,000 per year, the 
policy should be revisited. 

Agenda Page 40 of 71



STRATEGIC PLAN 
This policy amendment enhances the Sustainable Planning – Climate Emergency Response by 
supporting Council’s and the Sustainability Committee’s intention to reduce the community 
greenhouse gas emissions in the Municipality. 

WORK PLAN 
The following chart lists the work plan for amending Policy 058. 

Legislative Authority Work Performed Planned Date 

MODL Policy 002, Section 3.1 Policy & Strategy Committee 
presentation 

July 20, 2021 

Municipal Government Act, 
subsection 48(1) 

Notice of adoption to the 
Council at least 7 days before 
the reading 

July 27, 2021 

Municipal Government Act, 
subsection 48(3) 

Reading of the Council September 14, 2021 

Municipal Government Act, 
subsection 187(1) 

Deposit of a certified copy of 
the policy by Municipal Clerk 

September 15, 2021 

ALTERNATIVES 
Alternative Option A – Reduced Rate 
Council may charge the fee to recover the cost of electricity, which is $0.67 per hour. 

Alternative Option B – Standard Rate 
Council may charge the fee at a rate similar to a Level 2 EV charger in the vicinity to recover 
costs of electricity and maintenance, which is $1.50 per hour. 

CONCLUSION 
Based on the predicted amount of electricity consumption, cost of charger maintenance, and 
reduction of community GHG emission, staff recommends the municipal EV chargers to be 
available for public use free of charge. 

 

Department:   Planning & Development Services 

Report prepared by: Byung Jun Kang, Planner    Date: 2021-07-07 
Report approved by: Jeff Merrill, Director     Date: 2021-07-12 

Agenda Page 41 of 71



  Fees Policy 

 

 
Municipality of the District of Lunenburg 

POLICY 
 

Title: 
Fees 

Policy No. 058 Legislative Authority: 
 
Municipal Government Act, subsections 
132(2), 150(2), clauses 49(1)(c), 211(1)(b), 
and subclause 172(2)(e)(i) 
 
Private Roads By-law, Section 12 

Effective Date: 
11 January 2011; February 
amendments effective 01 April 2019 

Amended Date: 
May 10, 2011; February 12, 2019; 
February 25, 2020 

 
 
1.0 Title 

The Municipality of the District of Lunenburg shall establish an administrative 
policy concerning fees charged for municipal services This Policy is titled the 
Fees Policy. 

 
2.0 Administration 

Where appropriate, this Policy will be referenced in related Bylaws, concerned 
with the service identified. Any amendments and/or changes to the Policy will be 
at the determination of Municipal Council, on the recommendation of staff, or on 
the recommendation of related Committees of Council This Policy must be 
referenced in related By-laws concerning the service identified. 

 
3.0 Purpose 

The Municipality will must provide clarity to citizens as to the various fees it 
charges, on the various government services it provides to them. 

 
4.0 Listed Fees 

Fees shall be as follows: 
 
4.1 Planning and Development Applications & Fees  The fees for Planning and 

Development Services are as set out in Table 1.  
 
Table 1: Planning and Development Services Fees [amended February 12, 2019] 

Services Fees 

By-law Amendment, Planning Strategy 

Amendment Amendments to a Planning 

Strategy or a Land Use By-law 

$525.00 + advertising fee 

Development Agreement $525.00 + advertising fee 

Agenda Page 42 of 71



  Fees Policy 

 

Development Permit $26.00 

Final Plan of Subdivision $105.00 

   + each lot after two lots $26.00 

Fire Inspection Fees $210.00 

Map Book $25.00 

Map Reproduction Fee $11.00 + $0.55 per square foot 

Map Reproduction Fee/Sq Ft $0.55 

Planning Documents $11.00 

Private Road Maintenance & Improvement 

Charge Administration Fee Rate 

5% of the total expenditures  

in the annual private road budget 

Property Record Certificate $58.00 

Subdivision, Final Plan 

(+each lot after 2 lots) 

$105.00 

+$26.00 

Variance $79.00 

Zoning Certificate $53.00 

 
 
4.2 Recreation User Fees (Rentals) The fees for Recreation Services are as set out 

in Table 2.  
 
Table 2: Recreation Services Fees [amended February 12, 2019] 

Services Fees 

Ballfields $21.00 per hour + HST 

Ballfield League $19.00 per hour + HST 

MARC Rental Fee $11.00 per hour + HST 

MARC Residence Fee $5.00 per person + HST, per night + HST 

 
 
4.3 Administration User Fees The fees for Administration and Finance Services are 

as set out in Table 3.  
 

Agenda Page 43 of 71



  Fees Policy 

 

Table 3: Administration and Finance Services Fees [amended February 12, 2019] 
 

Services Fees 

Dog Tag – Replacement $1.00 

Fax (per page) $0.60 per page 

NSF Cheques $15.00 

Photocopies, Black & White B & W (per 

page) 

$0.15 per page 

Photocopies, Colour (per page) $0.30 per page 

Tax Certificate $42.00 

Tax Sale Admin Administration Fee $160.00 

Verbal Tax Information $11.00 

 
 

4.4 Engineering User Fees The fees for Engineering Services are as set out in Table 
4.  

 
 
Table 4: Engineering Services Fees [amended February 12, 2019] 

Services Fees 

Electric Vehicle Charging Station $0.00 per hour 

Sewer Permit $120.00 

 
 

 
5.0 Exempted Organizations 

Active non-profit organizations registered under the Societies Act are will be 
exempt from paying those fees identified under subsection 4.1 of this Policy, with 
the exception of the Private Road Maintenance & Improvement Charge  
Administration Fee Rate. [amended May 10, 2011 & Feb. 25, 2020] 

Agenda Page 44 of 71



  Fees Policy 

 

 

Clerk’s Annotation for Official Policy Book 
 
Date of Adoption:      January 11, 2011 
 
Date of Notice to Council Members 
  of Intent to Consider Amendments:    April 11, 2011 
Effective Date of Amendments:    May 10, 2011 
 
Date of Notice to Council Members 
  of Intent to Consider Amendments:                                     February 5, 2019 
Date of Approval of Amendments:    February 12, 2019 
Effective Date of Amendments:    April 1, 2019   
  
Date of Notice to Council Members 
  of Intent to Consider Amendments:                                     February 18, 2020 
Date of Approval of Amendments:    February  25, 2020 
Effective Date of Amendments:    February 25, 2020  
 
I certify that this “Fees Policy 058” was adopted and amended by Council as indicated 
above. 
 
 
 
____________________________   _________________________ 
Sherry Conrad, Municipal Clerk   Date 

Agenda Page 45 of 71



»

V.

<VC. 1gl%

Municipality of the District of Lunenburg

Request for Decision

REPORT TO:

SUBMITTED BY:

DATE:

RE:

Policy & Strategy Committee

Sherry Conrad

July 20, 2021

Proposed By-law 008A- By-law Respecting the Repeal of By-law

008 Fire Department Tax Exemption

RECOMMENDATION

"that the Policy & Strategy Committee recommends to Council that Municipal Council gives

notice of its intention to adopt By-law 008A By-law Respecting the Repeal of By-law 008 Fire

Department Tax Exemption and conduct First Reading of same and gives notice of Second

Reading to consider the adoption of By-law 008A".

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

Section 71(l)(c) & (d) of the Municipal Government Act, which gave councils the authority to

exempt properties of registered fire departments from taxation was repealed in 2001. With

this repeal. Section 5(1) "Exempt property" of the Assessment Art was amended to include

subsection (ia) which allows the property of a fire department or an emergency services

provider, registered pursuant to the Municipal Government Act, used directly and solely for

community purposes or fund-raising activities of the department or provider to be exempt from
taxation.

As a result of these amendments, By-law 008 Fire Department Tax Exemption approved by

Council on November 30, 1999, is no longer required to exempt fire departments and

emergency service providers from taxation.

DISCUSSION

As the Assessment Act includes a provision to exempt fire departments and emergency service

providers from taxation and the Municipal Government Act's Section to exempt fire

departments from taxation was repealed, By-law 008 Fire Department Tax Exemption is no

#9.1.3
July 27, 2021

Agenda Page 46 of 71

Tina.Bond
Agenda Stamp



longer required or has the authority to be effective. Staff is recommending that By-law 008 be 

repealed. 

BUDGET IMPLICATIONS 

None 

STRATEGIC PLAN 

N/A 

WORK PLAN 

No extra staff resources required. Completed during regular work schedule. 

ALTERNATIVES 

None. By-law does not have the authority any longer to be effective. 

CONCLUSION 

As By-law 008 Fire Department Tax Exemption is no longer effective under the Municipal 

Government Act and provision has been made for fire departments and emergency services 

providers to be exempt from taxation under the Assessment Act, the Fire Department Tax 

Exemption By-law needs to be repealed. 

Department: 

Report Prepared by: Sherry Conrad 

Report Approved by:   Alex Dumaresq, Deputy CAO

Reviewed By CAO: 

Date: June 15, 2021 

Date:  June 17, 2021 

Date: 

Agenda Page 47 of 71



Municipality of the District of Lunenburg 

BY-LAW 

Title: BY-LAW RESPECTING THE REPEAL OF BY-LAW 008 FIRE DEPARTMENT TAX EXEMPTION 

By-Law No. 008A Legislative Authority: 

Effective Date: Amended Date: 

BE IT ENACTED by the Council of the Municipality of the District of Lunenburg, under the 

authority of the Municipal Government Act, Chapter 18 of the Acts of 1998, as follows: 

1. By-law No. 008, Fire Department Tax Exemption By-law, adopted by the Council of the

Municipality of the District of Lunenburg on November 30, 1999, is hereby repealed.

Annotation for Official By-law Book 

Date of First Reading 

Date of Advertisement of Notice of Intent to Consider 

Date of Second Reading 

*Date of advertisement of Passage of By-law

Date of mailing to Minister a Certified copy of By-law 

<<date» 

«date» 

<<date» 

<<date>> 

<<date» 

*Effective Date of the By-law unless otherwise specified in the text of this By-law

I certify that this By-law 008A "By-law Respecting the Repeal of the Fire Department Tax Exemption 

By-law" was adopted by Council and published as indicated above. 

Sherry Conrad, Municipal Clerk Date 

Agenda Page 48 of 71



Page 1 of 2

Municipality of the District of Lunenburg

POLICY

Title:

Fire Department Tax Exemption By-Law
Effective Date:
November 30, 1999

Amended Date:

1.0 Authority
M.G.A s. 71

This By-Law is made pursuant to S. 71(1 )(C) of the Municipal Government Act.

2.0 Definitions

In this By-Law, unless the context otherwise indicates:

a)
b)

c)
d)
e)

".

<.<„•

3.0

"Council" means the council of the Municipality of the District ofLunenburg.
"Fire Department" means an incorporated body that provides fire services and
that may, at its opinion, provide one or more other emergency services, and
includes a fire or emergency services department of the Municipality, the Village
ofHebbville, a fire protection district or other body corporate.
"Fire protection district" has the same meaning as in the Rural Fire District Act.
"Municipality" means the Municipality of the District ofLunenburg;
"Registered fire departments" means fire departments registered pursuant to
Section 294, of the Municipal Goverirment Act.

Qualifications for Exemptions

The Council may exempt properties of registered fire departments from taxation,
including area rates, which are used directly and solely for community purposes or for
fund raising activities of the fire departments.

4.0 Exempt Properties

The following properties set out in Schedule
including area rates.

"A" hereto, are exempt from taxation,

Fire Department Tax Exemption By-LawAgenda Page 49 of 71



Page 2 of 2

Clerk's Annotation for Official Policy Book

Date of Notice to Council Members
off Intent to Consider (7 days minimum)

Date of Passage of Current Policy: November 30, 1999

I certify that this "Fire Department Tax Exemption By-Law"was adopted by
Council as indicated above.

Municipal Clerk Date

Fire Department Tax Exemption By-LawAgenda Page 50 of 71



54 municipal government 1998,c.18

(a) applies only to the property of a person occupied by
tfaat person as the person's principal residence;

(b) may provide that taxes be postponed for a certain
period, or until the death of the assessed owner or other specified
contingency;

(c) may provide for the postponement of tax collection
procedures for the current year;

(d) may prescribe the procedure for applying for the bene-
fits of the by-law, including the required forms and affidavits;

(e) may provide for interest on the taxes postponed.

(3) A limitation period affecting a municipality's entitlement to
collect postponed taxes does not begin until the period of postponement expires.

(4) Where a municipality provides that only a portion of the taxes
due may be postponed and where the portion that is required to be paid is three
years overdue, the period of postponement terminates thirty days after the treasurer
notifies the person whose taxes have been postponed, unless the taxes that were not
postponed are paid before the expiration of the thirty days.

(5) Except as otherwise provided by this Act or another Act of the
Legislature, a council shall not relieve a taxpayer from all or a portion of taxes.
1998, c.18, s. 70.

Tax exemption policy for certain organizations
71 (1) The council may, by policy, exempt from taxation, to the

extent and under the conditions set out in the policy

(a) property

(i) of a named registered Canadian charitable
organization, and

(ii) that is used directly and solely for a charitable
purpose;

(b) property of a nonprofit community, charitable, frater-
nal, educational, recreational, religious, cultural or sporting organiza-
tion if, in the opinion of the council, the organization provides a
service that might otherwise be a responsibility of the council;

(c) and (d) repealed 2001, c. 14, s. 3.

(e) the buildings, pump stations, deep well pumps, main
transmission lines, distribution lines, meters and associated plant and
equipment of a municipal water utility.

(2) The council may, by policy, to the extent and under the condi-
tions set out in the policy, provide that the tax payable with respect to all or part of

DECEMBER 1,2020

Agenda Page 51 of 71



R.S., c. 23 assessment 9

(2) Except for the term "forest property" terms used in subsec-
tion (1) have the same meaning as like terms defined by the Income Tax Act (Can-
ada). R.S., c. 23, s. 3.

PROPERTY LIABLE TO TAXATION

Taxable property
4 Subject to the exemptions in Section 5, all assessable property and

business and residential occiipancy assessments are liable to taxation for all purposes
for which municipal taxes and rates are levied by authority of law. R.S., c. 23, s. 4.

PROPERTY EXEMPT FROM TAXATION

Exempt property
5 (1) The following property is exempt from taxation under this Act:

(a) all property vested in Her Majesty or vested in any per-
son for Imperial, Dominion or Provincial purposes, and either unoc-
cupied or occupied by some person in an official capacity, except
that, if any such property is occupied by any person otherwise than in
an official capacity, the occupant shall be assessed and rated in
respect thereof, but the property itself shall not be liable;

(b) every church and place of worship and the land used in
connection therewith, and every churchyard and church burial ground
and every church hall used for religious or congregational purposes
exclusively save only for occasions specially authorized by church
authorities and for which no revenue in excess of one hundred dollars
per anniim is received, but in computing revenue for the purposes of
this clause there shall be excluded any contribution paid towards the
reasonable additional costs of upkeep imposed by the use;

(c) the property of a non-profit community cemetery, as
cemetery is dedned by the Cemetery and Funeral Services Act;

(d) the property of every college, academy or other public
institution of learning with the exception of property mamly used for
commercial, industrial, business, rental or other non-educational pur-
poses;

(e) every public school house, city or town hall, gaol,
lockup house and temperance hall, and the land used in connection
therewith;

all school lands;

all public landings, public breakwaters and public

(f)
(g)

wharves;

(h) the property of every municipality if occupied or used
for the purposes of such municipality or unoccupied, excepting nev-
ertheless that property owned, operated or managed by a municipality

MAY 1, 2020

Agenda Page 52 of 71



10 assessment R.S., c. 23

either directly or through the medium of a board or commission, for
the purpose of producing, transmitting, delivering or furnishing elec-
tricity, natural gas, water or power directly or indirectly to or for the
public, shall be assessed and taxed by that municipality;

(i) the building or part thereof in which equipment not
owned by a municipality, used or to be used exclusively for fighting
fires, is kept and the land m connection with such building, but only
if and while

(i) the equipment will be used for the fighting of
any fires within a radius of five miles from the building in
which it is kept, and

(ii) a written undertaking by the owners is in force
and is on file in the office of the clerk of the municipality,
undertaking that it will be so used, which undertaking may be
subject to cancellation on six months notice in writing;

(ia) the property of a fire department or an emergency ser-
vices provider, registered pursuant to the Municipal Government Act,
used directly and solely for community purposes or fund-raising
activities of the department or provider;

(j) the property of every agency, board or commission in
which two or more municipalities participate if occupied or used for
the purposes of the municipalities;

(k) property belonging at the time the assessment roll is
filed with the clerk by the assessor to infant children and occupied by
them, to the extent and under the conditions contained in Section 51;

(1) the property of an agricultural society organized under
Section 9 of the Agriculture and Marketing Act except such property
as is used mainly for commercial or industrial purposes;

(m) repealed 2000, c. 9, s. 3.

(n) the property of The Royal Canadian Legion and the
property of the Amiy, Navy and Airforce Veterans in Canada which
is used exclusively for the purpose of The Royal Canadian Legion or
the Army, Navy and Airforce Veterans in Canada, respectively;

(o) the property of any pack, troop, group, committee or
district council, regional council or provincial council which is used
exclusively for the purposes of the Boy Scouts;

(p) the property of any pack, company, district, division,
area, local or provincial association which is used exclusively for the
purposes of the Girl Guides;

(q) to (s) repealed 1998, c. 18, s. 547.

(t) the property of a hospital that is a hospital as defined in
the Hospitals Act;

MAY 1, 2020

Agenda Page 53 of 71



Municipality of the District of Lunenburg 
Memorandum 

To: Mayor Bolivar-Getson and Councillors  

From: Sherry Conrad, Clerk 

Date: July 20, 2021 

Re: Proposed MODL Policy 093 Temporary Water Relief Program 

The Policy and Strategy Committee, in session on July 20, 2021, reviewed the proposed MODL 
Policy 093 Temporary Water Relief Program.   

The Committee made a motion to recommend the adoption of proposed Policy 093 to Council 
and gave notice to Council of its consideration for approval of the Policy at its July 27, 2021 
Council meeting. 

Section 48(1) of the Municipal Government Act states, “Before a policy is passed, amended or 
repealed, the Council shall give at least seven days’ notice to all council members.”  Therefore, 
in accordance with Section 48(1), the proposed MODL Policy 093 Temporary Water Relief 
Program will be presented for Council’s approval at the July 27, 2021, Council session.  The 
Policy and Strategy Committee meeting of July 20, 2021, was hereby considered as Council’s 
notice. 

If Council approves of the proposed Policy, the following motion would be necessary. 

“that Municipal Council adopt the proposed MODL Policy 093 Temporary Water Relief 
Program as presented”. 

_________________________________________ 
Sherry Conrad 

Municipal Clerk 
/sac 

#9.1.4
July 21, 2021

Agenda Page 54 of 71

Tina.Bond
Agenda Stamp



Municipality of the District of Lunenburg
Policy

Title: Temporary water Relief

Policy No. 093 Legislative Authority:

Effective Date: Amended Date:

Purpose:

1.0 The purpose of this Policy is to establish a program to provide temporary
assistance to MODL residents experiencing dry wells as a result of a precipitation
deficit.

Definitions

2.0 CAO mean s the Chief Administrative Officer of the Municipality of the District of
Lunenburg, or their designate;

3.0 Precipitation Deficit means a period with an abnormally low rainfall compared to
the long-term average conditions in the region.

Program Initiation

4.0 Municipal staff will monitor long range precipitation forecasts, annual precipitation
deficits and resident reports of dry wells.

5.0 Cou ncil authorizes th eCAO to initiate a period of program supports for the
Temporary Water Relief Program once there is a precipitation deficit an d forecast
conditions indicate resident support will be required.

6.0 The CAO shall provide notification to Council at least one week in advance of
initiating a period of program support.

Eligibility

7.0 Applicants must be residents ofMODL to qualify for support.

Agenda Page 55 of 71



«name/number of Policy>> <<Date of Policy>> 

8.0 Residents must be experiencing a lack of access to potable water in order to 
qualify and must complete a Dry Well Survey once per year to be eligible to 
receive a program support. 

Program supports - Coupon Program 

9.0 The Municipality may provide coupons for residents to acquire potable water from 
local retailers. 

10.0 Applicants are eligible to receive 4 litres per day of potable water, to a weekly 

maximum of 112 litres per household. 

Program supports - Refill and Shower Sites 

11.0 The Municipality may partner with local public and/or private facilities to 
offer locations to refill containers and use shower facilities and may 
reimburse partnering facilities for services provided. 

12.0 Residents are required to abide by the rules and regulations of the partnering 
facility, including any public health and safety requirements. 

Program Termination 

13.0 The CAO has discretion to terminate a period of water support based on current 
water conditions, forecasts and program support uptake. 

14.0 Notice to Council to close a program support will be provided at least 2 weeks 
before termination of the support. 

Agenda Page 56 of 71



«name/number of Policy» «Date of Policy»

Clerk's Annotation for Official Policy Book

Date of Notice to Council Members:

Date of Passage of Current Policy:

Date of Notice to Council Members

of Intent to Consider Amendments:

Date of Passage of Amendments:

I certify that this "MODLPo//cy093'/was adopted by Council as indicated above.

Municipal Clerk Date

Agenda Page 57 of 71



^

'Nc. VSfi

Municipality of the District of Lunenburg

Memorandum

To: Policy and Strategy Committee

From: Rachel Hiltz, Assistant Emergency Coordinator

Alex Dumaresq, Deputy CAO

Date: July 20,2021

Re: Proposed Policy MDL 093 - Temporary Water Relief Program

Recommended Motion

Move that the Policy & Strategy Committee recommends to Municipal Council that Council
adopt Policy 093 -Temporary Water Relief Program, and hereby gives 7 days' notice that
Council will consider the proposed Policy at the July 27, 2021, Council meeting.

Background

Since an abnormally dry summer in 2016, MODL's Municipal Council has been prepared to offer
temporary supports to residents with shallow wells who have experienced a potable water
shortage. The program has run during the late summer and fall of 2016,2018, and 2020.

The program included providing bottled water coupons, redeemable for one free 4 litre jug of
water per person per household, to a maximum of 4 coupons per person per day. Residents

could obtain one weeks' worth of coupons at a time. Coupons expired weekly on Sunday.

Residents had to provide the coupons to the retailer, and the retailer had to submit the

coupons back to MODL to be reimbursed.

In 2016 and 2018, the program also offered various locations with water refill stations and

showers for residents to bathe. During 2020, fewer organizations provided this option, due to

COVID-19 sanitization requirements.

Council would determine to start the program based on resident requests and a precipitation

deficit, and end the program based on decrease in usage and increased rainfall. It was

recommended that a policy be created to have consistent application of the water relief

program.

Agenda Page 58 of 71



Proposed Policy

The attached draft policy formalizes the program and enables a more responsive and efficient
process for implementing and terminating supports for residents. The policy includes:

• the purpose of the program;
• authorizes that CAO or designate to begin the provision of a period of program

supports;

outlines eligibility for the program;
outlines available program supports (i.e. potable water coupons and showers/refills);
and

• authorizes the CAO or designate to terminate a period of program support, with notice.

The policy has been drafted in a way to allow for easy amendment if Council's strategic project
relating to increasing water resiliency uncovers other temporary support measures.

Budget Implications

The water coupon costs for previous years were as follows:

• 2016 = $1,038.12;

• 2018 = $224.41; and

2020 = $2,770.00.

Council typically approved up to $5,000 per year from the Council Contingency Fund. This year,
Council's budget includes $5,000 from the Drought Response/Water Resiliency Project budget
for the Temporary Water Relief Program. The Assistant Emergency Coordinator will track the

number of coupons being distributed. If the program is initiated in 2021, the cost could go over
$5,000 based on the number of coupons distributed. If this happens,staff will report to Council

before continuing the program.

Agenda Page 59 of 71



Municipality of the District of Lunenburg
Policy

Title: Temporary water Relief

Policy No. 093 Legislative Authority:

Effective Date: Amended Date:

Purpose:

1.0 The purpose of this Policy is to establish a program to provide temporary
assistance to MODL residents experiencing dry wells as a result of a precipitation
deficit.

Definitions

2.0 CAO mean s the Chief Administrative Officer of the Municipality of the District of
Lunenburg, or their designate;

3.0 Precipitation Deficit means a period with an abnormally low rainfall compared to
the long-term average conditions in the region.

Program Initiation

4.0 Municipal staff will monitor long range precipitation forecasts, annual precipitation
deficits and resident reports of dry wells.

5.0 Cou ncil authorizes th eCAO to initiate a period of program supports for the
Temporary Water Relief Program once there is a precipitation deficit an d forecast
conditions indicate resident support will be required.

6.0 The CAO shall provide notification to Council at least one week in advance of
initiating a period of program support.

Eligibility

7.0 Applicants must be residents ofMODL to qualify for support.

Agenda Page 60 of 71



«name/number of Policy» «DateofPolicy»

8.0 Residents must be experiencing a lack of access to potable water in order to
qualify and must complete a Dry Well Survey once per year to be eligible to
receive a program support.

Program supports - Coupon Program

9.0 The Municipalitymay provide couponsforresidentsto acquire potable water from
local retailers.

10.0 Applicants are eligible to receive 4 litres per day of potable water, to a weekly
maximum of 112 litres per household.

Program supports - Refill and Shower Sites

11.0 The Municipality may partner with local public and or private facilities to offer
locations to refill containers and useshowerfacilitiesand may re-imburse
partnering facilities for services provided.

12.0 Residents are required to abide by the rules and regulations of the partnering
facility, including any public health and safety requirements.

Program Termination

13.0 Th eCAO has discretion to terminate a period of water support based on current
water conditions, forecasts and program support uptake.

14.0 Notice to Council to close a program support will be provided at least 2 weeks
before termination of the support.

Agenda Page 61 of 71



«name/number of Policy» «Date of Policy»

Clerk's Annotation for Official Policy Book

Date of Notice to Council Members:

Date of Passage of Current Policy:

Date of Notice to Council Members

of Intent to Consider Amendments:

Date of Passage of Amendments:

I certify that this "MODLPo//cy093'/was adopted by Council as indicated above.

Municipal Clerk Date

Agenda Page 62 of 71



Municipality of the District of Lunenburg 
Memorandum 

To: Mayor Carolyn Bolivar-Getson & Municipal Council 

From: Chris Kennedy, Fire Services Coordinator 

Date: July 27, 2021 

Re: 2021/2022 Fire Department Area Rates  

Attached are the requested fire tax rates from Municipal Fire and Emergency Services providers 
for the fiscal year 2021-2022.  No increases have been requested this year due to Covid 
restrictions and the lack of annual ratepayer meetings. 

These rates are being recommended to Council for approval for the 2021-2022 fiscal year and, 
if the Council is in agreement, the following motion would be necessary: 

“Municipal Council approves the fire tax rates per $100 of assessment for the year ending 
March 31, 2022 as attached”. 

---------------------------------------------- 
Chris Kennedy, Fire Service Coordinator 

#10.1.1
July 27, 2021

Agenda Page 63 of 71

Tina.Bond
Agenda Stamp



 
Municipality of the District of Lunenburg 
Fire Tax Rates per $100 of Assessment 
For the year ending March 31, 2022 

 

Fire Department  2020/2021 2021/2022 

Name  Rate Proposed 

Big Tancook Island ERA  0.15 0.15 
Blockhouse FD  0.142 0.142 
Clearland Fire Protection (MAB)  0.11 0.11 
Conquerall Bank FD  0.15 0.15 
Cornwall and District FD  0.10 0.10 
Dayspring & District Fire Protection  0.15 0.15 
District 1 and 2 Fire Commission  0.07 0.07 
Hebbs Cross FD  0.15 0.15 
Hebbville FD  0.11 0.11 
Hemford & District FD  0.17 0.17 
Indian Point FD  0.10 0.10 
Italy Cross/Middlewood FD  0.12 0.12 
Lahave FD  0.13 0.13 
Lapland and District FD  0.12 0.12 
Maders Cove Fire Protection (MAB)  0.11 0.11 
Martins River FD  0.20 0.20 
Midville and District FD  0.17 0.17 
New Germany Volunteer FD  0.15 0.15 
Northfield and District FD  0.14 0.14 
Oakhill and District FD  0.17 0.17 
Oakland Fire Protection (MAB)  0.11 0.11 
Petite Riviere FD  0.17 0.17 
Pleasantville and District FD  0.13 0.13 
Riverport FD  0.12 0.12 
Tri District Fire/Rescue  0.15 0.15 
United Communities FD  0.12 0.12 
Walden FD  0.15 0.15 
Wileville FD  0.134 0.134 

No Increases Requested due to Covid 
Restrictions and the Lack of Ratepayers 
Meetings. 

   

 

In addition to the above noted rates all Fire Departments have a rate of .01 per acre for forestry land 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Agenda Page 64 of 71



Municipality of the District of Lunenburg 
Request for Decision 

REPORT TO:  Municipal Council 

SUBMITTED BY: Amy Wamboldt, Grant Coordinator 
Dave Waters, Director, Business Development, Tourism & Infrastructure 
Elana Wentzell, Director of Finance  

DATE: July 20, 2021 

RE: Canada Community Revitalization Fund for the Wayfinding Project 

RECOMMENDATION 
Municipal Council endorses the application to the Canada Community Revitalization Fund (CCRF) 
for the Wayfinding Project at a total project budget of $1.3 million. 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
Staff have identified a funding opportunity that would expediate the implementation of the 
Wayfinding project.  The CCRF opportunity will provide 75% funding up to $750,000 which 
surpasses the original grant funds estimate for the project of 35%. 

The Wayfinding plan was recently coordinated by the Economic Development department as a 
comprehensive signage system for the entire District to direct residents and visitors to 
municipal assets.  The funding opportunity would allow for the implementation of the plan to 
occur over 1-2 years, as opposed to the current implementation plan of 6-7 years.   

The net budget impact for the Wayfinding Project is estimated at $550,000.  The net budget 
impact is calculated by the total budget cost of $1.3 million minus the expected grant 
contribution of $750,000.  

Staff are seeking Council endorsement on the funding application for the Wayfinding project.  
To meet the deadline of July 23, 2021 the application was submitted in advance of Council’s 
consideration.  If Council chooses to not support the funding application, staff will withdraw the 
application. 

#10.1.2
July 21, 2021

Agenda Page 65 of 71

Tina.Bond
Agenda Stamp



 

DISCUSSION 
The Canada Community Revitalization Fund (CCRF) aims to help communities across Canada 
build and improve community infrastructure projects so they can rebound from the effects of 
the COVID-19 pandemic.  

The Fund will provide support to: 

1. adapt community spaces and assets so that they may be used safely in accordance with 
local public-health guidelines 

2. build or improve community infrastructure to encourage Canadians to re-engage in and 
explore their communities and regions. 

Eligible projects will be prioritized in the following order: 

 Revitalize Downtown Cores and Main Streets 

 Reinvent Outdoor Spaces 

 Create Green Infrastructure 

 Increase the Accessibility of Community Spaces 

A one-time special scheduled intake for July 23, 2021 will focus on eligible projects that are 
ready to proceed.  After this date, remaining funds will be allocated based on a continuous 
intake. 

Projects funded under the CCRF could receive a maximum contribution of up to $750,000, 
with funding to cover up to 75% of the total project costs. 

Staff have identified the Wayfinding project as an eligible project under this new funding 
opportunity.  Council has approved this project as a multi-year project due to its high costs.  
Currently, the capital budget is anticipating a total project expenditure of $705,000 over six 
years.  Given the vastness and complexity of MODL, the Wayfinding plan is recommending the 
purchase and installation of 181 signs. Although the project budget will likely cover the cost of 
signage purchase and installation, it does not account for the design and installation of the 
footings that each sign will require.  Without the design of these footings, an accurate cost 
estimate is difficult to produce.  As an estimate for the purpose of the grant application, staff 
are assuming signage costs of $700,000, footing costs of $400,000 and a contingency of 
$200,000.  These figures result in a total project budget of $1.3 million.    

Staff are looking for Council endorsement to apply to the CCRF for the Wayfinding project to be 
completed in one phase, with the flexibility to span the project over two years.  The estimated 

Agenda Page 66 of 71



project costs are $1.3 million.  If successful, MODL would contribute $550,000 to the project, 
with the remaining $750,000 coming from the federal grant. 

BUDGET IMPLICATIONS 
The 2021-22 Capital budget has allocated $145,000 for the implementation of the Wayfinding 
program.  Future years were estimated at $500,000.  Of the $705,000 total project cost, 
$372,500 was budgeted from Gas Tax, $250,000 from grants and $62,500 from reserves.  

If the CCRF application is successful, Council would be committing to spending an estimated 
$550,000 of Municipal reserves for the Wayfinding Project over the next two budget years.   

The 5-year Financial strategy supports the use of Municipal reserves for this project.  The Gas 
Tax allocated can be re-distributed to other capital projects, thus reducing reserve funding 
requirements on those projects.   This would result in an additional spending of municipal 
reserves of $155,000.     

As the grant allows for the project to be completed over two years, Council would be 
committing more money than is currently planned but would receive the benefit of an 
expanded and expedited signage project. 

STRATEGIC PLAN 
Council has set the Wayfinding Strategy as a 2021-22 Strategic Priority. 

WORK PLAN 
The Economic Development department is responsible for the implementation of the 
Wayfinding project.  Staff workplans have been developed to facilitate the timely 
implementation of this work. 

ALTERNATIVES 
Council could choose to support the CCRF application as submitted, or direct staff to withdraw 
the application for funding. 

 

 

  
Department:  

Report Prepared By:      Date: 

Report Approved By:      Date: 

Reviewed By CAO:      Date: 

Agenda Page 67 of 71



Municipality of the District of Lunenburg 
Request for Decision 

Report To:  Council 

Submitted By: Alex Dumaresq, Deputy CAO 
Tina Robichaud-Bond, A/Municipal Clerk 

Date: July 27, 2021 

Re: Emergency Assistance Fund for Community Facilities 

Recommendation 
That Council award the Emergency Assistance Fund for Community Facilities to the 
organizations listed in the staff report for a total amount of $122,583 $124,083 from the 
Emergency Fund established for community facilities in response to the Covid-19 public health 
protection measures. 

Background 
The Municipality established an Emergency Assistance Fund for Community Facilities to assist 
local groups and organizations in addressing the financial hardship caused by the inability to 
host planned fundraising events and activities during the Covid-19 crisis. 

Applicants could apply for emergency assistance for fundraising events and activities that were 
scheduled to take place during the Application Period of April 1, 2021 to September 30, 2021, 
but had to be cancelled because of the Covid-19 restrictions. There have been 2 earlier calls for 
application since the beginning of the pandemic. Local groups and organizations that receive 
emergency assistance through this program are still eligible to apply for regular municipal 
grants in the 2021-2022 fiscal year. 

As directed by Council, the criteria for the Emergency Assistance Fund for Community Facilities 
is as follows:  

 The Applicant must be a not-for-profit community, charitable, fraternal, educational,
recreational, religious, cultural or sporting organization;

 The Applicant must operate a community facility or hall that is used for hosting funding
events and activities that are open to the general public; and

#10.1.3
July 27, 2021

REVISED

Tina.Bond
Agenda Stamp



 The Applicant must demonstrate that it has experienced a negative financial impact 
resulting from its inability to raise funds through planned fundraising events and 
activities that had to be canceled due to Covid-19 restrictions. 

Funding amounts were prescribed by Council as follows: 

 Facilities within MODL are eligible for a grant of up to $2500 to replace reported losses. 
 Facilities outside of MODL who serve MODL residents are eligible for a grant of up to 

$1500 to replace reported losses. 

 

DISCUSSION 
Fifty-seven Fifty-nine (59) organizations applied for funding. Two Three organizations submitted 
late applications but were otherwise eligible. The revenue losses from these organizations over 
the six-month period was reported to be over $458,000 $462,000. Based on the criteria 
outlined above, the total funding amount recommended for award is $122,583 $124,083. 

 

Facilities Outside MODL but Serving MODL Residents 

 

  

Organization
Award 
Amount

Bridgewater Famers' Market Association 1,500$        
RCL #23 Lunenburg 1,500$        
Bridgewater Curling Club 1,500$        
Mahone Bay Centre Society 1,500$        
Mahone Bay Museum/The Mahone Bay Founders Soc. 1,500$        
RCL #24 Bridgewater 1,500$        
RCL #49 Mahone Bay 1,500$        
South Shore Fieldhouse Society (HB Studios) 1,500$        
Trinity United Church 1,500$        
Lunenburg and District Swimming Pool Society 1,500$        
United Baptist Church, Mahone Bay 1,500$        
Subtotal 16,500$      



 

Facilities within MODL Boundaries 

 

Organization
Award 
Amount

All Saints Lutheran Church 650$         
Association du Centre Communautaire de la Rive-Sud 2,500$      
Baker Settlement & District Community Hall 2,500$      
Barss Corner & Area Recreation Society 975$         
Branch LaHave Community Hall 2,500$      
Broad Cove Community Association 2,500$      
Conquerall Mills Community Hall 2,500$      
Epworth United Church 2,500$      
First South United Church Women 1,825$      
Grace Lutheran Church 2,500$      
Hinchinbrook Farm Society 500$         
Ladies Auxiliary Riverport & District Community Centre 2,500$      
LaHave Islands Marine Museum Society 2,400$      
Lake Centre & New Cumberland Community Hall 2,500$      
l'burg Co Historical Society (Fort Point Museum) 2,500$      
Lunenburg County Ground Search & Rescue 2,500$      
Maitland & District Recreation Community Centre 2,500$      
Middlewood United Church 900$         
Mount Calvary Lutheran Church 2,500$      
New Germany & Area Lions Club 2,500$      
North River Recreation Community Centre (L'burg Co) 2,500$      
Northwest United Baptist Church 2,500$      
Parkdale Maplewood Community Centre Assoc 2,500$      
Parkdale Maplewood Community Museum 2,500$      
Pinehurst Community Hall 2,500$      
RCL #102 New Germany 2,500$      
Riverport & District Community Centre 2,500$      
Riverview Enhanced Living Society 2,500$      
Rosedale New Horizon Seniors Club 2,500$      
South Shore Bluegrass Music Association 2,500$      
South Shore Waldorf School 2,500$      
St. Andrew's Anglican Church 2,100$      
St. John-in-the-Wilderness Anglican Church 1,923$      
St. John's Anglican Church Hall 2,500$      
St. Luke's Ladies Aid Church Group 1,125$      
St. Paul's United Church Hall 2,500$      
Tancook Island Recreational Centre Assoc 2,500$      
Trinity United Church Hall 2,500$      
Union Square Community Hall 2,500$      
Upper Cornwall Community Hall 2,500$      
Upper Northfield Community Hall 2,400$      
Vogler's Cove Community Hall 2,500$      
Wesley United Church 2,500$      
West Northfield Community Centre 1,784$      
West Side United Church 2,500$      
SubTotal 101,582$ 



 

Late Applications 

 

 

BUDGET IMPLICATIONS 
The total eligible funding request for each of the types of applications is $122,583 $124,083. 
Council included $220,000 in the 2021/22 budget for the grant.  

CONCLUSIONS 
Municipal Council established an Emergency Assistance Fund to support community facilities 
who have been affected by the pandemic and the related public health restrictions. The 
applications demonstrate the need for such a program to support these valuable community 
assets. The award of the remaining dedicated funds plus additional funds from Council’s 
contingency to match the eligible funding requests will provide significant support to these 
facilities during a very difficult year.  

 

 

Organization
Award 
Amount

New Germany & Area Medical Centre Community 2,275$        
Simpsons Corner Community Hall Society 2,349$        
Hillcrest Masonic Lodge #93 1,377$        
Subtotal 6,001$       


	Item 2.1
	Item 6.1
	Item 9.1
	Item 9.1.1
	Item 9.1.2
	Item 9.1.3
	Item 9.1.4
	Item 10.1.1
	Item 10.1.2
	Item 10.1.3



